
ABABABAB    
CREATING OPPORTUNITIES AND TACKLING INEQUALITIES 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY 21 JULY 2009 
7.00 PM 
 

Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall 
 
 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No 

 
1. Apologies for absence 

 
 

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations 
 

 

 At this point Members must declare whether they have an interest, whether 
personal or prejudicial, in any of the items on the agenda.  Members must 
also declare if they are subject to their party group whip in relation to any 
items under consideration. 
 

 

3. Minutes 
 

 

 3.1 Children and Lifelong Learning Scrutiny Panel held on 4 March 
2009 
 

1 - 6 

4. Call In of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions 
 

 

 The decision notice for each decision will bear the date on which it is 
published and will specify that the decision may then be implemented on the 
expiry of 3 working days after the publication of the decision (not including 
the date of publication), unless a request for call-in of the decision is 
received from any two Members of a Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny 
Commission.  If a request for call-in of a decision is received, 
implementation of the decision remains suspended for consideration by the 
relevant Scrutiny Committee or Commission. 
 
 

 

5. 16 to 18 year olds not in Education, Training or Employment (NEET) 
 

7 - 12 

6. Services for Adults and Children with Disabilities 
 

13 - 20 

7. Forward Plan of Key Decisions 
 

21 - 34 

 To consider the latest version of the Forward Plan 
 

 

8. Work Programme 
 

35 - 36 

 To agree the current work programme and discuss future items. 
 

 

Public Document Pack



9. Date of Next Meeting 
 

 

 Tuesday, 15 September 2009 at 7.00pm 
 

 

 
 

 

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Paulina Ford on 01733 452508 as soon as possible. 
 

 
 

Committee Members: 
 

Councillors: P Thacker (Chairman), J Wilkinson (Vice-Chairman), S Allen, Y Lowndes, B Saltmarsh 
and N Khan 

 
Substitutes: Councillors: Z Hussain, C Burton and J R Fox 

 
Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Paulina Ford on telephone 01733 
452508 or by email – paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk 

 
Emergency Evacuation Procedure 
 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest 
escape route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle 
will assume overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is 
unavailable, this responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair. 



  

 AB 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE  
CHILDREN & LIFELONG LEARNING SCRUTINY PANEL HELD IN THE  
BOURGES & VIERSEN ROOMS, TOWN HALL, PETERBOROUGH  

 
4 MARCH 2009 

 
Present: Councillors Walsh (Chairman), C Burton, S Day, Khan, Saltmarsh and 

Wilkinson 
 

Co-opted 
Members: 
 

Frank Smith Peterborough Diocesan Board of Education 

Also present: Katt King 
Bryony Pound 

Youth Council Representative 
Youth Council Representative 
 

Officers in 
Attendance: 

John Richards 
Mel Collins 
Elaine Fulton 
Maureen Phillips 
Debbie Brayshaw 
Stephen Sutherland 
Marie Southgate 
Elaine Lewis 
Paulina Ford 
Lindsay Tomlinson 
 

Executive Director, Children’s Services 
Assistant Director,  Learning and Skills 
Assistant Director, Commissioning and Performance 
Assistant Director, Families and Communities 
Head of Children’s Social Care 
Head of Strategy and Planning 
Lawyer 
Lawyer 
Performance Scrutiny and Research Officer    
Senior Governance Officer 
 

 
1. Apologies 
 

An apology had been received from Councillor Benton. Councillor C Burton attended as 
substitute. 
 

2. Declarations 
 
 There were no declarations.  
 
3. Minutes of the meeting held on 14 January 2009 
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 14 January 2009 were approved. 
 

4. Integrated Children with Disabilities Service and Aiming High for Disabled Children 
 
Integrating services for disabled children provided by health and the different divisions within 
children’s services was part of the ‘Every Child Matters’ agenda to ensure that children and 
families received a co-ordinated assessment of need and appropriate services to meet those 
needs.  
 
The aim of the project was to develop and implement an integrated service for children with 
disabilities across health, social care and education services by May 2009 and comprised the 
following key elements: - 
 

• To integrate processes, policies and procedures 

• To introduce a single assessment and referral process 

1



  

• To provide improved service pathways  

• To increase the amount of preventative services 

• To create an accurate database of all children with a disability 

• To develop joint planning processes 

• To develop short break provision taking into account the Department for Children 
Schools and Families and Department of Health  Aiming High implementation 
guidance 

• To provide quality information to children and young people, parents and carers 
on all of the services available to them 

• To ensure that children with disabilities were high on both operational and 
strategic agendas across children’s services and organisations 

• To increase the engagement and involvement of children and young people, their 
parents and carers  

 
Eligibility for the Aiming High Short Breaks programme was targeted at those children and 
young people who were in receipt of higher level disability living allowance (DDA) and/or 
mobility allowance. Nationally this would equate to 1.2% of the 0-19 population; information 
from the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) stated that 764 children and young 
people were in receipt of DDA in Peterborough and therefore this equated to 1.9% of the 0-19 
population. Within the project there were 18 key deliverables which were all on target up to 
31st December 2008. The complexity of budgets for disabled children within health had 
resulted in substantial delays in moving forward with pooled budgets and developing further 
integration plans. However, the project aims remained undiminished and every effort was 
being made to bring it back on track with the urgent appointment of an interim project 
manager who would be replaced by the permanent appointment of a service manager for the 
new service within 6 months. 

 

There were three key elements to the proposals to deliver Aiming High, all of which 
were based on key information from consultation with parents and which would be 
presented to those parents attending the Parents’ Forums during March 09 for further 
debate. The core offer involved publishing eligibility criteria and being transparent 
about how decisions were made to allocate services according to need. The full 
service offer involved expanding existing short break provision using Aiming High 
funding, and the guidance associated with allocation of the grant made it quite clear 
that both capital and revenue grants must be spent on developing a broader range of 
services with the aim of ‘securing short breaks for severely disabled children’.  

 

The focus of the commissioning strategy was therefore to build on existing services to 
expand on what was on offer, providing greater flexibility and choice and to bridge 
gaps in existing services identified by parents and carers.  

 
Observations and questions were raised and discussed including: 
 

• When will the staffing issues be resolved? 

• We are due to interview next week and the intention is to have a small team 
responsible for the project rather than one person up until the time a new team leader 
is appointed.  

• When will the correct data be available? 

• We won’t be happy with the data until we have an integrated case management 
system. We are currently improving processes to encourage registration and we are 
confident we will get close to an accurate picture. 

• What is the life span of the project? 

• The project is to put in place permanent management arrangements to make the 
service fully integrated. 

• Do the authority and the PCT need to match fund the government funding? 

2



  

• The authority is not providing any additional monies; the PCT is match funding. 
ACTION AGREED 
 
The Panel noted the report. 
 

5. The Annual Review of Peterborough’s Children and Young People Plan 
 

Peterborough’s first statutory Children and Young People Plan (CYPP) had been published in 
April 2006. The three-year rolling plan had undergone two subsequent reviews and had been 
approved by the Children’s Trust, Full Council and PCT Board in April of each year. 
 
The overview document that outlined the vision and key priorities for children and young 
people in Peterborough was to be submitted for approval by Full Council in April 2009. An 
Annual Report, setting out progress against the 2008 CYPP, and a full Needs Assessment 
were due to be published in July 2009, to allow for the inclusion of end-of-year performance 
outturns. 
 
The 2008 Children and Young People Plan had outlined the following vision: 
 

“Our vision is simple: to create an environment where children and young people are 
safe and healthy, can enjoy what life has to offer and have ambition and aspirations, 
where they achieve their goals and make a positive contribution for themselves, their 
family and their community”. 
 

The 2008 CYPP outlined ten broad priorities, each of which had a number of key areas of 
focus. It was not proposed to change the ten priorities in the 2009 Children and Young People 
Plan. However, it was proposed that the key areas of focus be reviewed and updated to meet 
current needs. It was also proposed that there be an additional priority related to the key 
strategic enablers that needed to be put in place to deliver improved outcomes in Children’s 
Services. 
 
Observations and questions were raised and discussed including: 
 

• How are you raising aspirations? 

• The Children’s Trust has 5 outcome partnerships, one of them being the “Enjoy and 
Achieve” Partnership which has been identified as a key focus. Any thoughts and 
ideas from members would be welcomed. 

• How are you narrowing the achievement gap within the Pakistani community? 

• We have a national programme around narrowing the gap. We have materials we 
use with schools and targeted programmes for groups in schools. We have seen 
improvement in the outcomes for children from the Pakistani community across all 
key stages. Information will be circulated to members. We have undertaken wider 
work through children’s centres and extended schools – early intervention and 
support for families has been shown to be very effective. 

• What support mechanisms are there for voluntary groups working during the 
evenings, for example after school clubs? 

• We have a contract with the voluntary sector umbrella body for the delivery of 
services, training, CRB checks etc. Individual organisations went through a 
competitive tendering process to apply for funding to deliver specific areas of work, 
focussed on the CYPP priorities. 

 
ACTION AGREED 
 
The Panel noted the report. 
 
 
 

3



  

 
6. Post Haringey Review of Safeguarding – the Effectiveness of Safeguarding 
 Arrangements in Peterborough 
  

Following the publication of a Serious Case Review [SCR] in respect of Baby P in Haringey, a 
Joint Area Review [JAR] of safeguarding arrangements in that authority had been undertaken 
at the end of November 2008. Its findings had prompted the Secretary of State to request that 
all “ Local Authorities, with their partners take stock of the effectiveness of safeguarding 
practices in their own areas”. 
  
The Panel received details of the action plan of Children’s Services to undertake an 
assessment of its arrangements against the findings and recommendations of the Haringey 
JAR. In addition Local Authorities had been requested to Review Serious Case Reviews 
judged inadequate by Ofsted.  
 
Immediately post-Haringey, the position of Head of Social Care reporting into a larger Family    
and Communities division was reviewed. To give safeguarding and social care a higher 
profile with direct accountability to the Director, the Head of Social Care had been designated 
a full member of the Departmental Management Team. In addition, within the developing 
Children’s Trust Partnership Board (CTPB) structure, the Staying Safe Partnership Group 
would ensure leadership within the trust of the Staying Safe Action Plan and would strengthen 
links between the CTPB and the Local Safeguarding Children’s Board. 
 
A review of safeguarding within social care had been conducted and one area for immediate 
action had been identified in relation to improving the quality of strategy meetings. Work was 
ongoing to improve the quality of assessments, developing a best practice model, and a new 
audit programme was being developed to reflect the issues discovered in Haringey and 
ensure the council remain compliant with the recommendations of the Climbie Inquiry of 
2003. 
  
The vacancy rate of qualified social workers within the authority was 12%. Reliance on 
agency staff had been reduced to a minimum. The additional work to review the two serious 
case reviews deemed inadequate had been completed and all necessary changes to 
procedures had already been implemented. 
 

Observations and questions were raised and discussed including: 

• This is a very complex issue. Members are often involved in individual cases and it 
can be difficult to get information – the problem of secrecy needs to be rectified. 

• We hope there is no secrecy with the families concerned. We need to look at how we 
can best share information with members – it may be that information is withheld as it 
forms evidence. Officers will look at possible solutions; it may be that we can 
introduce a policy of telling members why information cannot be given. 

 
ACTION AGREED 
 
The Panel endorsed the report. 

 
7. The Youth Crime Action Plan 

 
The Youth Crime Action Plan, launched on 15th July 2008, was a cross-government initiative 
involving the Home Office, Ministry of Justice and Department for Children, Schools and 
Families. It aimed to get young people off the streets late at night, provide intensive support 
for the most problematic families and tougher, more visible ‘community payback’ sentences 
for young people who offend. At its heart, the plan was driven by the following three 
principles:-   
 

4



  

• Enforcement and punishment  

• Non-negotiable support  

• Better and earlier prevention 
 

The national Youth Crime Action Plan built on progress already made since the instigation of 
youth offending teams in 2000. The action plan highlighted a number of developments which 
had had a positive impact on youth crime reduction.  

However, whilst the volume crime had gone down, the level of youth crime self-reported by 
young people remained static. There was understandable public concern about violence, use 
of weapons and gang related offending nationally. The plan identified the scope to improve 
local co-ordination and accountability and to focus on early intervention and prevention by 
focusing on the underlying causes of offending and the family circumstances associated with 
youth offending.  

The key headlines relating to the reduction of youth crime nationally were as follows:  

• Personal crime was down by 40% and violent crime down by 41% since 1995; 

• Programmes such as ‘Tackling Gangs Action Programme’ had made real differences; 

• There had been a significant investment in prevention, family support and the early 
years provision; 

• Children’s centres were increasingly targeting vulnerable families; 

• Extended schools were offering a variety of co-located services for children, families 
and young people; 

• There had been substantial investment in positive activities for young people at risk 
of offending and poor outcomes generally; 

• The Youth Justice Board had developed a range of targeted intervention 
programmes 

 
The Youth Crime Action plan analysed current progress in tacking youth crime and identified 
promising schemes piloted or implemented successfully in certain areas. Authorities granted 
YCAP money were required to implement services from a specified menu of projects and 
interventions designed to reduce youth crime. Peterborough was one of 69 local authorities 
qualifying for an YCAP grant of £790,000 over the following three years. Qualification was 
based on a needs analysis, around levels of social deprivation, disadvantage and offending 
levels.  
 
After school ‘sweeps’ were taking place 3 times a week across Peterborough. Using 
uniformed police officers and police community safety officers, young people engaging in 
antisocial behaviour after school were picked up and returned to their parents. Early 
intervention of this nature had been found to prevent more serious problems occurring in the 
majority of cases. 
 
Observations and questions were raised and discussed including: 
 

• On what basis are schools chosen for after school police patrols? 

• This is part of the safer schools initiative – it has proven so successful that all schools 
want to be involved. We will be introducing it into all areas. 

 
 ACTION AGREED 
 
 The Panel noted the report. 

 
8. Feedback and Update Report 

 
The Panel received updates on the following: 
 

5



  

• Recruitment and Retention in Schools 

• Children’s Trust – Overview of performance 
 

 ACTION AGREED 
 
 The Panel noted the report. 

 
9. Executive Decision 

 
The Panel considered the following Executive Decisions taken since the last meeting: 
 

• Appointment of LEA Governor to Stanground St Johns Primary School 

• Appointment of LEA Governor to Paston Ridings Primary School 

• Appointment of LEA Governor to Matley Primary School 

• Quality & Access for All Young Children- Three Year Allocation of Early Years Capital 
Grant 

• Appointment of LEA Governor - Nene Valley Primary School 

• Appointment of LEA Governor - Matley Primary School 

• Appointment of LEA Governor - Dogsthorpe Infants School 

• Appointment of LEA Governor - Eyrescroft Primary School 

  

ACTION AGREED 
 
The Panel noted the report. 
 

10. Forward Plan of Key Decisions 
 
 The Panel received the latest version of the Council’s Forward Plan, containing key 
 decisions that the Leader of the Council anticipated the Cabinet or individual Cabinet 
 Members would make during the course of the following four months.  Members were 
 invited to comment on the Plan and, where appropriate, identify any relevant areas for 
 inclusion in the Panel’s work programme.  

 
ACTION AGREED 
 
The Panel noted the Forward Plan and agreed that a briefing note be circulated to members 
on the Peterborough Substance Misuse Treatment Plans. 
 
 
 
 
 

The meeting began at 7pm and ended at 8.20pm 
 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 

6



CREATING OPPORTUNITIES AND TACKLING 
INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY PANEL 
 

Agenda Item No. 5 

21 JULY 2009 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Director of Children’s Services                                      
 
Report Author – Jenni Hepworth 
Contact Details – 01733 863957 
 

16 TO 18 YEAR OLDS NOT IN EDUCATION, TRAINING OR EMPLOYMENT (NEET) 

 
1. PURPOSE 
 

To update the scrutiny committee on the rising numbers of young people Not in Education, 
Employment or Training (NEET) in Peterborough and associated plans to reduce this number. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

That committee members consider the report and offer support to intervention activities to reduce 
NEET where appropriate. 

  
3. LINKS TO CORPORATE PLAN, SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY AND LOCAL 

AREA AGREEMENT 
 

The reduction of young people not in education, employment or training (NEET) is a critical 
national indicator (NI117) in the Local Area Agreement. 
  

4. BACKGROUND 
  

The Young People’s Service delivers connexions services within Peterborough to meet the 
following statutory responsibilities: 

 

• Under Section 8 of the Employment and Training Act 1973 (amended by the Trade 
Union and Reform and Employment Rights Act 1993) to provide a careers service for 
young people, including careers information, advice and guidance and support to find 
suitable employment and training 

• Under Section 114 of the Learning and Skills Act 2000 to provide support to young 
people to encourage and enable their participation in education or training 

• Under Section 139 of the Learning and Skills Act 2000, to carry out an assessment for 
young people with learning difficulties and/or disabilities to assist their transition into post 
16 education and training opportunities 

• The 14-19 Implementation Plan (2005) made a commitment of offer, by the end of 
September, a suitable place in post 16 learning to all young people leaving compulsory 
education.  This is known as the September Guarantee.  This year the September 
Guarantee has been extended to all those who reached statutory school leaving age in 
2008 and 2009. While these are shared responsibilities, Connexions Service providers 
are responsible for tracking offers made and supporting young people who have not 
received an offer. 

 
5. KEY ISSUES 
 

Key national indicators around NEET (young people not in education, employment or training) 
that sit with the Young People’s Service are: 

7



• NI 91 – increase the % of 17 year olds in learning.  The target for 2009/10 is 87%, based 
on the average performance across November 09 to January 10.  As of June 09, 84% of 
17 year olds are in learning 

• NI 117 – reduce the % of 16-18 year olds who are not in education, employment or 
training (NEET).  The target for 09/10 is 7.5%, based on the average performance 
across November 2009 – January 2010.  This local authority target was based on a 
planned reduction of 2 % points by 2010.   

• Linked to these national indicators is the measure of the % of young people who are in a 
‘not known’ situation. 

 
While connexions service providers have specific responsibilities for NEET targets, NEET is a 
shared responsibility that forms a key part of strategies and planning locally, both through the 
Achieving Economic Well-Being Outcome Group (within the Children’s Trust Partnership Board 
structure) and through the 14-19 Education Plan. 
. 

5.1 Performance on reducing NEETs 
 
5.1.1   Annual targets: 
 

 Nov 06 Nov 07 Nov  08 – Jan 09 Nov 09 – Jan 10 Current 
situation 
June 09 

% 16-18 NEET 9.2% 8.4% 9.1% Target 7.5% 10.1% 

Not known 2.7% 2.5% 2.5% Target 2% 1.8% 

17 year olds in 
learning 

- - 82.9% Target 87% 84% 

 
5.1.2   Comparative data for Nov 2008 – Jan 2009: 
 

 England average East of England 
average 

Peterborough Peterborough 
target 

% 16-18 NEET 6.7% 6.2% 9.1% 8.5% 

 
5.1.3 Position at the end of May 2009: 
 

 National average East of England 
average 

Peterborough 

% 16-18 NEET 7.3% 6.7% 9.7% 

 
Source:  (NCCIS data, verified by DCSF) Comparative data for June will not be available until August. 

 
The attached data (monitoring NEET target) shows the annual highs and low of NEET levels, 
which reflect the academic year.  Figures usually increase from August as young people leave 
statutory education and levels fall again as young people move into new education, training or 
work situations through September and October. 

 
Compared to the previous year, NEET levels started to rise in Peterborough from January 2009.  
The % change in Peterborough at the end of May 2009 was 15.5%, which is higher than the 
national and regional average change of 11.6%.  The numbers of 16-18 year olds in employment 
has fallen significantly over the last 12 months.  By the end of May 2009, Peterborough saw a 
minus 20% change in numbers in employment, the same as the East of England average but 
above the national average of minus18%.   

 
As NEET levels continue to rise above the expected rate for the time of year, this suggests that 
meeting this year’s target of 7.5% will be even more challenging than anticipated. 
 
 
 
 

8



6. IMPLICATIONS 
 

The following data aims to give an insight into the characteristics of the ‘NEET group’ in 
Peterborough, and is taken from the monthly Connexions Management Information summary and 
NCCIS data (drawn from the Connexions Client Information System – CCIS) managed through 
the Young People’s Service. 

 
6.1 Figures behind the %s 
 

• As at the end of June 2009, 509 16-18 year olds in Peterborough are NEET.  This 
represents an increase of 77 young people from June 08.  Of these 509, 414 (81%) are 
available for work or training.  The other 19% are not currently available (mainly due to 
illness, pregnancy or being teenage parents). 

• While the overall % of 16-18 year olds in learning has increased slightly from 79% in 
June 2008 to 80.3% in June 2009, the overall % of young people in education, 
employment and training has fallen from 89.6% to 88.2%.  There are 176 fewer young 
people in employment (both with and without training) than this time last year, reflecting 
the impact of the economic downturn that is affecting all people of working age. 

 
Gender 

• Slightly more young males than females are NEET (51% of NEET group is male, 49% 
female) 

• Significantly more males than females are available for and actively seeking work or 
training (62% of this group is male, 38% female).  This reflects the 66 young women 
who are currently pregnant or teenage parents in Peterborough 

 
Geographical spread 

• Monthly data is available on NEET levels at ward level across Peterborough. 

• The highest pockets of NEET are in Orton Longueville (64 young people), Central (48 
young people), Bretton North (46 young people) and Dogsthorpe (45 young people).   

 
Ethnicity 

 
The ethnic breakdown of the NEET group broadly mirrors the overall ethnic make up of young 
people 

 % white British % other white % Pakistani % ethnicity not 
recorded 

All YP 16-19 63% 7% 7% 14% 

Overall EET 61% 8% 7% 16% 

Full time 
education 

55% 6% 8% 20% 

Employed 76% 8% 6% 5% 

Employed no 
training 

74% 8% 7% 2% 

Training course 68% 6% 8% 12% 

NEET 75% 8% 7% 2% 

Not known 67% 8% 6% 8% 

 

• all other ethnic groups (based on DCSF groupings) represent 1% or less of cohort and 
of activity groups 

• relatively high numbers of data not recorded in full time education reflects the targeted 
support for those young people looking for work/training and/or at risk of becoming 
NEET 

• The accuracy of the data is affected by the % where no ethnicity is recorded, but overall 
the figures suggest that young people who are White British/White other are slightly 
over-represented in NEET and in employment. 

 
 

9



6.2 Young people facing additional barriers 
 
It is widely recognised that young people from particular groups are at risk of becoming NEET, 
and local data bears this out: 

• on average 1 in 10 young people over school leaving age is NEET in Peterborough 

• 2.5 in 10 young people with learning difficulties and disabilities are NEET 

• 3 in 10 young people who are looked after/ care leavers are NEET 

• 3 in 10 young people who attended alternative provision pre 16 are NEET 

• 5.5 in 10 young people who’ve been involved with the Youth Offending Service are 
NEET 

• 7 in 10 teenage mothers are NEET 

• 64% of the NEET group have qualifications below level 2 (equivalent to below 5 GCSEs 
A-C). 

 
7. CONSULTATION 
 

The tracking and analysis of NEET data, performance and intervention to improve performance 
all form key agenda matters at the Achieve Economic Well-Being Partnership Group and 
therefore is regularly fed into the Children’s Trust Partnership Board for consideration. 

 
8. EXPECTED OUTCOMES 
 
8.1 What we are already doing 
 

• The Young People’s Service continues to focus resources on work to prevent education 
leavers becoming NEET, and to target resources to track and to support those who are 
NEET, and to enable them to access suitable opportunities and provision.  We work in 
close partnership with a range of services and organisations around these strands.  
Current work includes: 

• on-going tracking of every NEET young person to check if they are still looking for work 
and to offer support 

• range of information, advice and guidance services, including specialist careers 
guidance, support with job search skills and access to hardship benefits, to personal 
development opportunities (such as the Princes Trust Team Programme), and support 
to access job and training vacancies.  Over the last year, around 7000 young people, 
many of whom were NEET, have visited the Youth Access Point in the Central library.  
Connexions Information Advisers offer front line support, information and advice to 
these young people, together with duty Personal Advisers providing careers guidance 
and in-depth support for those young people in crisis due to homelessness, financial 
hardship or other issues 

• Under 18 Adviser from Job Centre Plus works 2 days a week from the Youth Access 
Point, making it easier for young people in financial hardship to access benefits and 
supporting more young people onto training courses as a first step towards work 

• Intensive Personal Advisers work with a small caseload of young people who are facing 
multiple barriers, both to move into and then to sustain a place in college, training or 
work 

• early identification with schools of Year 11 and Year 12 leavers who are at risk of 
becoming NEET 

• liaising with partner services (including Youth Offending Service, Teenage Pregnancy 
support, Children in Care teams, Attendance Service and Inclusion Officers) to identify 
school leavers from vulnerable groups and offering careers information, advice and 
guidance to support them to make plans for once they finish education 

• targeting school leaver follow up on those who are still undecided about their plans, 
whose plans are not known, and who are looking for work and training 

• targeted support and provision for Year 11 leavers at risk of becoming NEET, including 
early access to ESF funded programmes and activity programmes such as U Project 

• a range of partners is planning a NEET activity week in early September, launched by 
interactive stands in Queensgate on Saturday 5th September to engage NEET young 

10



people and their parents and give them tasters of education, training and volunteering 
opportunities on offer and involve employers in advising young people on the skills they 
are looking for 

• engaging staff in reflecting on and suggesting improvements to Young People’s Service 
work with NEET young people – their suggestions are now being taken forward 

• multi-agency Targeted Learner Needs Group continues to monitor trends and needs 
locally and feed information through to the 14-19 Planning Group on approaches to 
identifying gaps and broadening the range of provision available 

 
8.2 What we plan to do 
 

• develop a Peterborough NEET Strategy by early September, with involvement from all 
key stakeholders 

• run training in conjunction with Job Centre Plus to raise awareness of and support early 
access for 18 year olds to Flexible New Deal 

• review young people’s vacancy service (currently provided through a Service Level 
Agreement with Cambridgeshire County Council) and implement a locally focussed 
service to support more young people into work and training 

• develop close links with the newly formed National Apprenticeship Service to raise 
awareness of and access to the new Vacancy Matching Service for apprenticeships 

• contribute to the implementation of the Future Jobs Fund programme in the city 

• continue to strengthen and improve internal systems to track and support NEET young 
people  

• through a new young people’s website, promote the full range of positive activities to 
young people, including targeted marketing to NEET young people 

• develop additional personal development opportunities through youth work provision 
targeted on NEET young people and help them on the journey towards education, 
employment and training by gaining informal qualifications and broader life skills 

 
9. NEXT STEPS 
 

Return to the scrutiny committee for monitoring of progress in February 2010 – following 
performance information on the annual target – measured as an average across November, 
December and January. 

 
10. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

 All data tables and comparators have been drawn utilising current data from the Connexions 
Client Information System (CCIS) 

 
 
  

11



12

This page is intentionally left blank



 

CREATING OPPORTUNITIES AND TACKLING 
INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 6 

21 JULY 2009 
 

Public Report 

 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES 
 
Report Authors: Denise Radley; Maureen Phillips; John Richards  

 
Contact Details: 01733 863601  
 

SERVICES FOR ADULTS AND CHILDREN WITH DISABILITIES 
 
1. PURPOSE 
 

To set out a position statement relating to adults and children’s services for those with 
disabilities; to highlight some of the plans for those services; to propose some scrutiny topics for 
the next year and to suggest some scrutiny methods. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Members to agree the scrutiny topics which they wish to scrutinise over the next year 
 

3. LINKS TO CORPORATE PLAN, SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY AND LOCAL 
AREA AGREEMENT 

 
 The work highlighted within this report directly contributes to the Creating Opportunities, Tackling 
 Inequalities outcome of ‘Supporting Vulnerable People’ within the Local Area Agreement. 
 
4. A POSITION STATEMENT – ADULTS AND CHILDREN  
 
4.1 Adults 
 
4.1.1 Learning Disabilities 

 
Learning disability is the most common form of disability in Britain affecting around 1.2 million 
people.  It is estimated that there are 339 people in the Peterborough resident population aged 
15-64 with profound learning disability, and a further 3803 with mild to moderate learning 
disability.  
 
Some people live relatively independently, hold down jobs and have busy social lives.  At the 
other extreme, where people have profound and multiple disabilities, round-the-clock support is 
necessary. 
 
Service users, parents, carers and the voluntary sector make up most of the membership of our 
Learning Disability Partnership Board which has led the development of the learning disability 
strategy. (See appendix 1 for details of service provision) 
 

4.1.2 Physical Disabilities 

A register is kept of people with sensory impairments and 388 people with sensory impairments 
were supported by community based social care services in 2008, covering 26.1% of those 
registered. 
 

13



 

There has been an increase in the number of people with a physical disability receiving 
community care services to support them to live at home.  Adults with a physical disability have 
been proactive in taking direct payments and it is anticipated that there will be a similar demand 
for individual budgets. (See appendix 1 for details of service provision) 
 

4.2 Children  
 
There is no single data source to reliably identify the number of disabled children in 
Peterborough. Data is collated from health, early years, and special educational needs data 
sources. It is estimated therefore that there are just over 1,800 disabled children and young 
people in Peterborough as follows: - 

 

Age band Number 

0-5 605 

5-16 1,017 

Post-16 229 

Total 1,851 

 

Total  0-19 population 40,386 

% with disability 4.6% 

 
 
5. SOME KEY FINDINGS AND PLANS 
 
5.1 Adults 

 
In 2005, an inspection of services for adults with learning disabilities in Peterborough was 
undertaken by the Commission for Social Care Inspection (CSCI).  The inspection indicated that 
further work was required in the following areas: 

 
Ø Person centred planning 
Ø Independent and self-advocacy 
Ø Uptake of self-directed support 
Ø Service users living with elderly relatives 
Ø Transitions. 

 
5.1.1 Strategic Plan Goals 

 
A. To enable inclusion for those with learning disabilities: 

 
1. Utilise the review of all out of area placements to: 

• Scope current service gaps to ensure effective commissioning of services with 
SCG or locally dependent on need and market availability of accredited providers 

• Identify those who are suitable to return to area  

• Undertake advocacy and person centred planning with those not yet ready to 
return. 

 
2. Improve availability of information in accessible and user friendly formats  

 
3. To work jointly with housing associations, private sector, and shared ownership to 

commission a full range of tenures, including: 

• Live alone (independent / supported living) 

• Live with family 

• Live in a house or flat with others 

14



 

• Live in cluster housing – when a group of people live near each other, in the same 
neighbourhood, street, or block of flats. 

 
4. To increase the number of people with learning disabilities in paid and voluntary 

employment by working with our contractors, Job Centre Plus and other partners to 

• Raise expectations regarding work, especially in schools and colleges 

• Develop partnership working with educational establishments via the transitions 
strategy group.  Ensure transitions toolkit, which will include individual’s future 
employment options, is completed for year 9 pupils with learning disabilities at 
their review from September 2009  

• Liaise with organisations we contract and work with to raise awareness of and 
create employment opportunities.  

 
 
B. To ensure modern and responsive services are provided for people with disabilities 

 
1) Work with GPP to ensure improved physical facilities for people with a disability 

 
2) Review sensory support services to ensure service is aligned to client needs 
 
3) Establish a rehabilitation worker for visually impaired people, giving support with 

mobility skills, daily living skills and communication 
 
4) Work with Independent Living Support Services to develop the market following a 

review of the gaps and development needs identified by service users 
 
5) Facilitate the establishment of a ‘user-led’ organisation through the further development 

of the Peterborough Disability Forum to represent disabled people 
 
6) Ensure optimal access to the new capacity within the City Care Centre to provide 

intensive rehabilitation for adults with a disability in the bedded and day care areas.  
 

5.2 Children 
 
There is a new national indicator measured by a survey of parents with disability. All local 
authorities who have included this indicator in their local area agreement participated in the first 
survey in March 2009, the results of which provide the national benchmark for performance 
against which improvement will be measured. The scores are for the percentage of parents who 
express satisfaction with services in the following respects: - 
 

o Provision of information 
o Assessment of need 
o Transparency 
o Participation 
o Feedback 

 
The scores for each area are aggregated to give an overall score. The national benchmark is 
59% satisfaction rate and Peterborough’s performance at 60% very much reflects the national 
average picture and is broken down as follows: - 
 

 Health Education Social care 

Information 64 69 61 

Assessment 76 82 62 

Transparency 95 89 86 

15



 

Participation 60 50 52 

Feedback 16 19 16 

  
5.2.1 The plan to integrate services for children with disabilities 
 

Integrating services for disabled children provided by health, and the different divisions within 
children’s services (Learning and Skills, Social Care, Family and Communities) is part of the 
‘Every Child Matters’ agenda to ensure that children and families receive a co-ordinated 
assessment of need and appropriate services to meet those needs. Avoiding duplication of 
assessment and providing clear pathways for children and families to access universal, targeted 
and specialist services are key elements of integrated service delivery. For disabled children, this 
means ensuring that they and their carers are provided with support to remain at home; to be 
able to access universal services such as community leisure facilities and extended schools; that 
there are targeted services specifically designed to meet moderate levels of need and that there 
are highly specialist and well coordinated services to meet complex needs of children with 
profound disabilities. 
 
A project to integrate services for children with disabilities has been established by the children’s 
trust partnership board, managed within children’s services and was the subject of a report to 
Children and Lifelong Learning Scrutiny Panel on 4th March 2009.  An interim service manager 
has been appointed who has additional capacity being provided through a small team from the 
Voluntary Sector Forum. A shadow Management Board is in place. (See Appendix 2) 
 

5.2.2 Further plans 
 
Consultation with parents confirmed that the key elements of the commissioning strategy 
highlighted in the previous scrutiny report are very much what they wanted to see. The 
appointment of the Aiming High Commissioning Officer therefore enables the city council 
to accelerate progress in all areas: - 

 

a. Increasing information, advice and guidance to parents 

b. Supporting access to universal provision through: - 

o Additional care support to access mainstream facilities; 

o Developing extended services and holiday schemes to increase access to 
disabled children; 

o Grants to voluntary sector providers to improve access for disabled 
children; 

o Improving transport access to overnight short breaks and universal leisure 
activities/extended services; 

o Increasing direct payments and providing appropriate support to parents to 
use the scheme; 

o Increased domiciliary care services; 

o Improving the availability of aids and equipment to support short breaks; 

o Increasing occupational therapy capacity to provide appropriate 
assessment for short break provision; 

o Reviewing the capacity of the short breaks fostering service following the 
residential respite review; 

o Prioritising allocation of capital to enable disabled children to access 
mainstream play, leisure and sports facilities. 

 
 

16



 

6. POSSIBLE AREAS OF SCRUTINY 
 
6.1 Adults 

 
1. User-led organisations – “Putting People First” the national concordat on adult social 

care requires all areas to have at least one user-led organisation in place by 2011.  In 
Peterborough we have supported and funded the development of the Disability Forum 
which it is hoped will become the key user-led organisation for the city.  Currently the 
Forum is being hosted by DIAL, an established local charity.  A full-time Forum Worker 
is now in post to take forward the development.  The Committee could add value by 
examining progress to date in the context of the national and local requirements and 
needs and testing how the Forum could be most effective in its role.  Clearly this would 
require the agreement of the Forum itself which it is recommended is contacted directly 
by the Committee should this be an area of focus.  This approach would indicate a 
commitment to hearing the voices of disabled people in Peterborough and to supporting 
truly user-led services and enabling people to take more control over their lives and 
have much more say in local decisions. 

 
2. Self-directed support – adult social care will be transformed by the introduction of 

Individual Budgets which will bring about much ore choice and control for people who 
use services.  The system is designed to be more transparent and fairer in terms of how 
resources are allocated.  It also aims to enable individuals to take control over their 
money or services and be creative in meeting their own needs.  We started to 
implement this in January 2009 so Scrutiny would add to the evaluation of progress and 
provide challenge to the programme delivery as this is a key target in Peterborough’s 
Local Area Agreement. 

 
3. Carers including young carers – a new national strategy has led to a new local strategy 

for carers in Peterborough and this is about to be finalised.  A new Carers’ Partnership 
Board is in place with an ex-carer as a co-chair.  Performance on the carers’ indicator 
has recently improved considerably and there are new services in place such as the 
emergency support register.  Feedback suggests that support for parent carers needs to 
be improved.  Scrutiny could add value to the implementation of the new strategy.  A 
collaboration between the new Carers’ Partnership Board and the Scrutiny Committee 
could be an exciting venture, 

 
4. Disabled parents with disabled children – in some families one or both parents and one 

or more children have disabilities.  These cases are often extremely complex with 
several service users of children’s and adult’s services plus several people who may 
consider themselves carers.  There is potential for difficulties between agencies working 
with the family (children’s services, adult social care and health services) and potential 
for confusion over who provides what and how to get help.  A focused piece of work 
specifically looking at these families would be ground-breaking and could feed into the 
agenda around prevention and whole family working. 

 
6.2 Children 

 
5. Although parental satisfaction in Peterborough appears to be similar to the 

national average, we do know that many children with moderate disabilities are 
not currently accessing services. Increasing awareness of services, therefore, is 
likely to reduce parental satisfaction initially until we have sufficient capacity 
developed to respond to the full range of need. Central to parental satisfaction is 
the ability of children with disability and their families to access mainstream 
community and leisure facilities. Simple issues such as accessing toilets 
become enormous barriers to normal family life. Public toilets which have 
changing facilities for older disabled children are rare. As a result of parental 
consultation, however, the need for such a facility in the city centre has been 
identified and is being taken forward within the Cathedral Square development. 

17



 

Parental engagement with elected members is therefore crucial to effective 
scrutiny of services. 

 
 
6. The development of the integrated service is being taken forward in partnership 

with Peterborough Community Services within the departmental transformation 
programme ‘delivering through localities’. Within the most recent consultation 
document, it is proposed that services to disabled children will be brought 
together as a natural alliance and located with special educational needs in the 
learning and skills portfolio. The progress towards a fully integrated service is 
also and area for scrutiny. 

 
7. Supporting transition into adulthood is a key aspect of the Aiming High 

programme. Although we are able to report that 100% of disabled children have 
a transition plan at 14+, there is a considerable amount of work required to 
develop holistic services which support young people into adulthood and 
independence.   

 
7. SCRUTINY METHODS 
 

It has been proposed that the scrutiny committee will focus on services for both adults and 
children with disabilities over the next year. This will allow an in-depth consideration of all or any 
of the scrutiny topics listed above. It also enables a unique opportunity for Members to engage in 
a range of scrutiny activities: 
 

• Examination of policies and strategies 

• Survey and questionnaire development and analysis  

• Focus group sessions 

• Shadowing staff 

• Meetings with, and visits to provider organisations 

• Discussions with individual adults and children 

• Overseeing a debate 

• Organising a seminar to set out the findings 
 
8. DOCUMENTS REFERRED TO IN THE TEXT 

 
Aiming High for Disabled Children: Short Breaks Implementation Guide. DCSF and DH July 
2008 
 
Healthy Lives, Brighter Futures. The strategy for children and young people’s health. A 
commitment from The Children’s Plan. DCSF and DH February 2009 (Chapter 6 Services for  
children with acute or additional health needs) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

18



 

 
Service Provision for Adults with Learning or Physical Disabilities    Appendix 1 
 
NHS Peterborough has a specialist Community Team for People with Learning Disabilities.  People with 
physical disabilities are supported by the locality teams which cover older people and those with 
disabilities aged under 65.  There is also a small specialist team for people with sensory needs. 
 
Key services for people with learning disabilities include: 
 

• Employment and education support services are provided by Westcombe employment services via 
Peterborough community services and support people into employment and education, they also 
develop a directory of available courses annually  

• Peterborough Council for Voluntary Services is commissioned to provide Advocacy – this is either 
group, case work or specific BME.  

• Person centred planning is provided through circles  

• Carer development worker works closely with and support parent/carers  

• Transitions work stream is multi-agency partnership working that assist young people through the 
transition between children and adult services.  

• An accommodation manger liaises with both service users and providers to ensure appropriate 
accommodation is provided locally.  

• Service user and social care representatives provide an invaluable service is proving support and 
training to primary care staff on how to work with people with learning disabilities. Part of this work 
has led to a number of people have personal accessible Health action plans  

• The Network team is supported by Peterborough Council for Voluntary Services and empowers and 
supports individuals in a group setting to express their views, ideas about their lives and the services 
they encounter. This group also has a key role within the Learning disability partnership board.  

• There are a number of Supported living schemes that enable people to live and independent but 
supported live.  

• Individual budgets and Direct payments have enabled a number of people to access a number of 
services including accessing leisure and community activities in a supported and safe way  

• Lava lamp is a social event that has evolved from the Network team. This provides people with 
learning disabilities the opportunity to socialise with their peers in a safe and supported environment.  

 
Key services for people with physical disabilities include: 
 
§ Care at home/community care including care management from a care support worker and social 

work support. 
§ Specialist assessments. 
§ Rehabilitation through specialist rehabilitation workers. 
§ Equipment including assessment, provision, training and repair. 
§ Information guidance and support to raise awareness. 
§ Specialist support for mobility skills, daily living skills, communication. 
 
Services commissioned from voluntary and community providers include: 
 
§ Communication support groups. 
§ Co-ordination of peer to peer support groups. 
§ Drop in services. 
§ Social inclusion activities. 
§ Advocacy. 
§ Disability information and advice services including help to fill in forms, provide benefits checks, liaise 

with other agencies. 
 

 
 

19



 

 

Head of Service 
Inclusion 

 

Head of Service 
Speech and 
Language  

 

Head of Service 
Early Years and 

Childcare 
 

Head of Service 
Children’s 
Social Care 

 

Community 
Paediatrician 

 

CONTINUUM OF SERVICE DELIVERY 
(SEAMLESS SERVICE) 

POOLED BUDGETS WHEREVER POSSIBLE 
 

UNIVERSAL PREVENTATIVE TARGETED SPECIALIST 

Threshold & 

trigger points 

Threshold & 

trigger points 

Threshold & 

trigger points 

Joint Chair 
Assistant Director Family and Communities and Assistant Director Children’s Community Health Services 

Example: 
Children in 
24 hour 52 

week care  

CHILDREN WITH DISABILITIES INTEGRATED SHADOW MANAGEMENT BOARD                                                                        Appendix 2 

Head of Service 
Paediatric 

Occupational 

Therapy 

Example: 
Children 
living at 
home 
using 
universal 

services 

2
0



CREATING OPPORTUNITIES AND TACKLING 
INEQUALITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Agenda Item No. 7 

21 JULY 2009 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Solicitor to the Council 
 
Report Author – Paulina Ford, Performance Scrutiny and Research Officer 
Contact Details – 01733 452508 or email paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk 
 

FORWARD PLAN – 1 JULY 2009 to 31 OCTOBER 2009 
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 This is a regular report to the Creating Opportunities and Tackling Inequalities Scrutiny 

Committee outlining the content of the Council’s Forward Plan. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 That the Committee identifies any relevant items for inclusion within their work programme. 
 

3. BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The latest version of the Forward Plan is attached at Appendix 1.  The Plan contains those key 
decisions, which the Leader of the Council believes that the Cabinet or individual Cabinet 
Member(s) will be making over the next four months. 
 

3.2 The information in the Forward Plan provides the Committee with the opportunity of considering 
whether it wishes to seek to influence any of these key decisions, or to request further 
information. 
 

3.3 If the Committee wished to examine any of the key decisions, consideration would need to be 
given as to how this could be accommodated within the work programme. 
 

4. CONSULTATION 

 
4.1 Details of any consultation on individual decisions are contained within the Forward Plan. 

 
5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

 
 None 

 
6. APPENDICES 

 

 Appendix 1 – Forward Plan of Executive Decisions 
 
 

21



22

This page is intentionally left blank



     
      

P
E
T
E
R
B
O
R
O
U
G
H
 C
IT
Y
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
’S
 F
O
R
W
A
R
D
 P
L
A
N
 

  

1
 J
U
L
Y
 2
0
0
9
 T
O
 3
1
 O
C
T
O
B
E
R
 2
0
0
9
 

APPENDIX 1 

23



 

 F
O
R
W
A
R
D
 P
L
A
N
 O
F
 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 –
 1
 J
U
L
Y
 2
0
0
9
 T
O
 3
1
 O
C
T
O
B
E
R
 2
0
0
9
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  A

B
 

 
D
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 f
ro
m
 1
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
 t
o
 3
1
 O

c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il'
s
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 i
n
te
n
d
s
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 'k
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
' o

n
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
b
e
lo
w
. 
 K
e
y
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 r
e
la
te
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w

h
ic
h
 a
re
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 o
r 
s
a
v
in
g
 m

o
n
e
y
 i
n
 e
x
c
e
s
s
 o
f 
£
5
0
0
,0
0
0
 a
n
d
/o
r 
h
a
v
e
 a
 

s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
w
o
 o
r 
m
o
re
 w
a
rd
s
 i
n
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
. 

 T
h
is
 F
o
rw

a
rd
 P
la
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
e
e
n
 a
s
 a
n
 o
u
tl
in
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
n
d
 i
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 o
n
 a
 m

o
n
th
ly
 b
a
s
is
. 
 T
h
e
 d
a
te
s
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
 a
re
 

s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 i
te
m
s
 a
m
e
n
d
e
d
 o
r 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
o
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 m

o
re
 t
h
a
n
 o
n
e
 m

o
n
th
 i
n
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
v
e
r 
to
 f
o
rt
h
c
o
m
in
g
 p
la
n
s
. 
 E
a
c
h
 n
e
w
 

p
la
n
 s
u
p
e
rs
e
d
e
s
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 p
la
n
. 
 A
n
y
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

 w
h
ic
h
 a
p
p
e
a
rs
 a
t 
th
e
 b
a
c
k
 o
f 
th
e
 

P
la
n
 a
n
d
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 L
in
d
s
a
y
 T
o
m
lin
s
o
n
, 
S
e
n
io
r 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 O

ff
ic
e
r,
 C

h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 D

e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t,
 T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll,
 B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
E
1
 1
H
G
 (
fa
x
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
8
3
).
 

A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
ly
, 
y
o
u
 c
a
n
 s
u
b
m
it
 y
o
u
r 
v
ie
w
s
 v
ia
 e
-m

a
il 
to
 l
in
d
s
a
y
.t
o
m
lin
s
o
n
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 o
r 
b
y
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
 o
n
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
2
3
8
. 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
in
v
it
e
s
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
t 
w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
s
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
a
p
e
rs
 l
is
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
 c
a
n
 b
e
 

v
ie
w
e
d
 f
re
e
 o
f 
c
h
a
rg
e
 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
 p
o
s
ta
g
e
 a
n
d
 p
h
o
to
c
o
p
y
in
g
 c
h
a
rg
e
 f
o
r 
a
n
y
 c
o
p
ie
s
 m

a
d
e
. 
A
ll 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
o
s
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
: 

w
w
w
.p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
. 
  
If
 y
o
u
 w
is
h
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 o
r 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 'k
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
' 
o
u
tl
in
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
is
 P
la
n
, 
p
le
a
s
e
 s
u
b
m
it
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

S
e
n
io
r 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 O

ff
ic
e
r 
u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

 a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
. 
 F
o
r 
y
o
u
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 
th
e
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
d
e
ta
ils
 f
o
r 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
is
 p
la
n
. 

 
 N
E
W
 I
T
E
M
S
 T
H
IS
 M

O
N
T
H
: 

 

•
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
S
u
b
s
id
is
e
d
 B
u
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 

L
e
is
u
re
 a
n
d
 C

u
lt
u
re
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 

C
a
s
h
 C

o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 K
e
y
 H
o
ld
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 

S
ta
ti
o
n
e
ry
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 

•
 

F
u
rn
it
u
re
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 

   
 

     

24



 

 

 
J
U
L
Y
 -
 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 

 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 R
E
Q
U
IR
E
D
 D
A
T
E
 O
F
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 
D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M
A
K
E
R
  

C
O
N
S
U
L
T
A
T
IO
N
 

 
C
O
N
T
A
C
T
 D
E
T
A
IL
S
 /
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 

A
U
T
H
O
R
S
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
S
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 

S
u
b
s
id
is
e
d
 B
u
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
: 

•
 
C
e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
s
o
m
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
R
e
te
n
d
e
r 
o
f 
s
o
m
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

T
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

re
v
ie
w
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 a
n
d
 g
iv
e
 d
e
le
g
a
te
d
  

a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r,
 O

p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 

a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
 t
h
e
 c
e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

s
u
b
s
id
e
 a
n
d
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 

a
n
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
  
C
a
b
in
e
t 

     

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 
p
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 

n
u
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 b
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
. 
A
ll 

w
a
rd
 c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 w
ill
 b
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 a
lo
n
g
 w
it
h
 

e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
ra
d
e
 

u
n
io
n
s
 a
s
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 
 

T
e
re
s
a
 W

o
o
d
 

G
ro
u
p
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 
–
 A
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 a
n
d
 

T
ra
v
e
l 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
1
7
4
5
1
 

te
re
s
a
.w
o
o
d
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

  

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

te
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 

 

25



 

L
e
is
u
re
 a
n
d
 C
u
lt
u
re
 T
ru
s
t 

T
o
 g
iv
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 t
o
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 o
f 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
in
g
 a
 n
o
t-
fo
r-
p
ro
fi
t 

d
is
tr
ib
u
ti
n
g
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 (
a
 

‘t
ru
s
t’
) 
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 

c
u
lt
u
ra
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 

s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 t
h
e
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 

c
re
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 t
ru
s
t,
 t
o
 

a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
 t
h
e
 C

h
ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 
in
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C

a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
C
a
p
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
, 
to
 e
n
te
r 
in
to
 a
 

le
g
a
l 
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

tr
u
s
t 
to
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
 

       

C
a
b
in
e
t 
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 w
it
h
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

K
e
v
in
 T
ig
h
e
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
C
u
lt
u
re
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
7
8
4
 

k
e
v
in
.t
ig
h
e
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

te
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 

 

G
ro
w
th
 A
re
a
 B
id
s
 

T
o
 d
e
le
g
a
te
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

h
ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 t
h
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 t
o
 

b
id
 f
o
r 
s
it
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
, 
w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 

c
o
v
e
re
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr
e
 

A
re
a
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
, 
o
r 
s
it
e
s
 

w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 o
th
e
rw

is
e
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 f
o
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
to
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 i
ts
 

G
ro
w
th
 a
g
e
n
d
a
. 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
 
L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
, 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
C
e
re
s
te
 

 

In
te
rn
a
l 
d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 p
lu
s
 w
a
rd
 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 

G
ill
ia
n
 B
e
a
s
le
y
 

C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
3
9
0
 

g
ill
ia
n
.b
e
a
s
le
y
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

  

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

te
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 

 

A
rt
h
u
r 
M
e
ll
o
w
s
 V
il
la
g
e
 

C
o
ll
e
g
e
 G
y
m
 a
n
d
 

In
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 t
o
 a
w
a
rd
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
th
e
 g
y
m
 a
n
d
 i
n
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 

c
e
n
tr
e
 a
t 
A
M
V
C
 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
 
L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
, 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
C
e
re
s
te
  

  

W
a
rd
 c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 a
n
d
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 

Is
a
b
e
l 
C
la
rk
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
1
4
 

is
a
b
e
l.
c
la
rk
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

te
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 

26



 

M
id
la
n
d
 H
ig
h
w
a
y
 A
ll
ia
n
c
e
 

- 
J
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 8
 R
o
u
n
d
a
b
o
u
t 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

W
e
ll
a
n
d
 R
o
a
d
 T
ra
ff
ic
  

M
it
ig
a
ti
o
n
 P
ro
je
c
ts
 T
o
 

a
p
p
o
in
t 
a
  
c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 
fo
r 
th
e
 

w
o
rk
s
 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
, 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 

a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

H
il
le
r 

 

In
te
rn
a
l 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

S
tu
a
rt
 M

o
u
n
fi
e
ld
 

S
e
n
io
r 
E
n
g
in
e
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
3
5
9
8
 

s
tu
a
rt
.m

o
u
n
fi
e
ld
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

   

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

te
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 B
u
s
h
fi
e
ld
 

A
c
a
d
e
m
y
 –
 P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

P
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 

d
e
le
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 n
e
w
 

B
u
s
h
fi
e
ld
 A
c
a
d
e
m
y
 i
n
 

a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 f
o
r 
S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 

  

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
S
k
il
ls
 a
n
d
 

U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
, 
C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

H
o
ld
ic
h
 

 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
lo
c
a
l 
w
a
rd
 

c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

B
ri
a
n
 H

o
w
a
rd
 

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 P
h
a
s
e
 2
 P
ro
je
c
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
7
6
 

b
ri
a
n
.h
o
w
a
rd
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

te
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 

 

J
o
in
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 C
e
n
tr
e
 a
t 

H
a
m
p
to
n
 

T
o
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
a
 

d
e
s
ig
n
 a
n
d
 b
u
ild
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 

th
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
n
e
w
 l
e
is
u
re
 

a
n
d
 l
ib
ra
ry
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 a
t 

H
a
m
p
to
n
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 j
o
in
t 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

w
it
h
 N

H
S
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
. 

  
 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
C
a
p
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re
, 
C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
L
e
e
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 t
a
k
e
 

p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C

a
b
in
e
t 

M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
w
a
rd
 c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
, 

a
ff
e
c
te
d
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
d
iv
is
io
n
s
 

w
it
h
in
 P
C
C
 a
n
d
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

u
s
e
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
 i
n
 H

a
m
p
to
n
. 

F
io
n
a
 O

’M
a
h
o
n
y
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 
J
S
C
 H
a
m
p
to
n
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
8
5
6
 

fi
o
n
a
.o
’m

a
h
o
n
y
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

    

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

te
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 

 

27



 

T
h
o
rn
e
y
 a
n
d
 E
y
e
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

T
o
 g
iv
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 t
o
 a
w
a
rd
 

th
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 

c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
E
y
e
 a
n
d
 

T
h
o
rn
e
y
 C

h
ild
re
n
’s
 C

e
n
tr
e
 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
S
c
o
tt
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

lo
c
a
l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 

g
o
v
e
rn
in
g
 b
o
d
ie
s
, 

v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 
c
h
ild
c
a
re
 

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 a
n
d
 p
ri
v
a
te
 

c
h
ild
c
a
re
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 i
n
 E
y
e
 

a
n
d
 w
it
h
 w
a
rd
 c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
. 

 

P
a
m
 S
e
tt
e
rf
ie
ld
 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
H
e
a
d
 o
f 
C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

F
a
m
ili
e
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
8
9
7
 

p
a
m
.s
e
tt
e
rf
ie
ld
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

te
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 

 

L
a
d
y
 L
o
d
g
e
 A
rt
s
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
u
tu
re
 u
s
e
 o
f 

th
e
 L
a
d
y
 L
o
d
g
e
 A
rt
s
 C

e
n
tr
e
 

s
it
e
 

  

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

S
e
a
to
n
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 

o
u
t 
w
it
h
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
w
a
rd
 

c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 

A
n
d
re
w
 E
d
w
a
rd
s
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
3
0
 

a
n
d
re
w
.e
d
w
a
rd
s
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

te
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 

 

L
e
g
a
l 
C
h
a
m
b
e
rs
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
-t
e
n
d
e
ri
n
g
 

fo
r 
th
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
e
x
te
rn
a
l 

le
g
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

  

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

S
e
a
to
n
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 t
a
k
e
 

p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 a
ll 
in
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

 

L
is
a
 O

s
b
o
rn
e
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
2
7
6
 

lis
a
.o
s
b
o
rn
e
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

te
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 

 

D
e
b
t 
C
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 

T
o
 g
iv
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
  
to
 a
w
a
rd
 

th
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 

a
u
th
o
ri
ty
’s
 d
e
b
t 
c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
  

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

S
e
a
to
n
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 w
it
h
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
. 

H
e
le
n
 E
d
w
a
rd
s
 

S
o
lic
it
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
5
3
9
 

h
e
le
n
.e
d
w
a
rd
s
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

  

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

te
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 

 

28



 

S
a
le
 o
f 
S
u
rp
lu
s
 F
o
rm
e
r 

A
ll
o
tm
e
n
t 
L
a
n
d
 a
t 

W
e
s
tw
o
o
d
 G
ra
n
g
e
 (
S
o
u
th
 

o
f 
A
th
e
rs
to
n
e
 A
v
e
n
u
e
 a
n
d
 

P
o
rt
m
a
n
 C
lo
s
e
, 
W
e
s
t 
o
f 

G
ra
n
g
e
 R
o
a
d
 a
n
d
 N
o
rt
h
 o
f 

M
a
y
o
rs
 W
a
lk
, 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
) 

T
o
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
 t
h
e
 C

h
ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 n
e
g
o
ti
a
te
 

a
n
d
 c
o
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 s
a
le
 o
f 
th
is
 

s
u
rp
lu
s
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
a
s
s
e
t 
b
a
s
e
d
 

o
n
 b
e
s
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
. 
 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

S
e
a
to
n
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 t
a
k
e
 

p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

w
a
rd
 c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 

A
n
d
re
w
 E
d
w
a
rd
s
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
3
0
 

a
n
d
re
w
.e
d
w
a
rd
s
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

te
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 

 

S
a
le
 o
f 
S
u
rp
lu
s
 F
o
rm
e
r 

A
ll
o
tm
e
n
t 
L
a
n
d
 o
ff
 I
tt
e
r 

C
re
s
c
e
n
t 

T
o
 a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
 t
h
e
 C

h
ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 
in
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 S
o
lic
it
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il,
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 D

ir
e
c
to
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
H
e
a
d
 o
f 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t,
 t
o
 n
e
g
o
ti
a
te
 

a
n
d
 c
o
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 s
a
le
 o
f 

s
u
rp
lu
s
 l
a
n
d
 a
t 
It
te
r 

C
re
s
c
e
n
t 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

S
e
a
to
n
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 t
a
k
e
 

p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C

a
b
in
e
t 

M
e
m
b
e
r,
 W

a
rd
 c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
, 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 &
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

A
n
d
re
w
 E
d
w
a
rd
s
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
3
0
 

a
n
d
re
w
.e
d
w
a
rd
s
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

te
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 

 

29



 

S
a
le
 o
f 
S
u
rp
lu
s
 L
a
n
d
 a
t 

M
a
tl
e
y
 R
o
a
d
, 
O
rt
o
n
 

B
ri
m
b
le
s
 

T
o
 n
e
g
o
ti
a
te
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
c
lu
d
e
 

te
rm

s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 d
is
p
o
s
a
l 
o
f 
th
is
 

a
s
s
e
t 
b
y
 p
ri
v
a
te
 t
re
a
ty
. 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

S
e
a
to
n
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 t
a
k
e
 

p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
w
a
rd
 

c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 

R
ic
h
a
rd
 H
o
d
g
s
o
n
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
ro
je
c
ts
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 7
4
2
2
3
0
 

ri
c
h
a
rd
.h
o
d
g
s
o
n
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

te
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 

 

S
a
le
 o
f 
S
u
rp
lu
s
 L
a
n
d
 a
n
d
 

B
u
il
d
in
g
s
 a
t 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

P
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

C
e
n
tr
e
 (
P
P
D
C
),
 

C
o
tt
e
s
m
o
re
 C
lo
s
e
, 

N
e
th
e
rt
o
n
, 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

T
o
 n
e
g
o
ti
a
te
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
c
lu
d
e
 

te
rm

s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 d
is
p
o
s
a
l 
o
f 
th
is
 

a
s
s
e
t 
b
y
 p
ri
v
a
te
 t
re
a
ty
 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

S
e
a
to
n
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 t
a
k
e
 

p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
w
a
rd
 

c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 

R
ic
h
a
rd
 H
o
d
g
s
o
n
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
ro
je
c
ts
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 7
4
2
2
3
0
 

ri
c
h
a
rd
.h
o
d
g
s
o
n
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

te
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 

 

IC
T
 M
a
n
a
g
e
d
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

T
o
 s
e
le
c
t 
a
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 
to
 d
e
liv
e
r 

IC
T
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

S
e
a
to
n
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
: 
IC
T
 s
ta
ff
; 
H
R
; 

F
in
a
n
c
e
; 
L
e
g
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
; 

D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ta
l 

R
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 

E
la
in
e
 A
le
x
a
n
d
e
r 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 
–
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

T
ra
n
s
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
1
7
9
8
4
 

e
la
in
e
.a
le
x
a
n
d
e
r@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

te
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 

 

C
a
s
h
 C
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 K
e
y
 

H
o
ld
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

A
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
e
x
te
n
s
io
n
 t
o
 

th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
c
a
s
h
 

c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 k
e
y
 h
o
ld
in
g
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 u
n
ti
l 
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

S
e
a
to
n
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 w
it
h
 a
ll 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

L
is
a
 O

s
b
o
rn
e
 

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
2
7
6
 

lis
a
.o
s
b
o
rn
e
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

te
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 

 

 

30



 

 

 
A
U
G
U
S
T
 -
 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 

 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 R
E
Q
U
IR
E
D
 D
A
T
E
 O
F
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 
D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M
A
K
E
R
  

C
O
N
S
U
L
T
A
T
IO
N
 

 
C
O
N
T
A
C
T
 D
E
T
A
IL
S
 /
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 

A
U
T
H
O
R
S
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
S
 

R
e
a
l 
T
im
e
 P
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 t
o
 e
n
te
r 
in
to
 a
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 

C
e
n
tr
a
l 
B
e
d
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il,
 B
e
d
fo
rd
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 L
u
to
n
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
re
a
l 

ti
m
e
 p
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 

A
u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
0
9
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
, 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 

a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

H
il
le
r 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 

w
it
h
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
in
te
rn
a
l 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
s
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

A
m
y
 W

a
rd
e
ll 

T
e
a
m
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r,
 P
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 P
ro
je
c
ts
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
1
7
4
8
1
 

a
m
y
.w
a
rd
e
ll@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

  

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

te
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 

 

  

31



 

  

 
S
E
P
T
E
M
B
E
R
 -
 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 

 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 R
E
Q
U
IR
E
D
 D
A
T
E
 O
F
 

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 
D
E
C
IS
IO
N
 M
A
K
E
R
  

C
O
N
S
U
L
T
A
T
IO
N
 

 
C
O
N
T
A
C
T
 D
E
T
A
IL
S
 /
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 

A
U
T
H
O
R
S
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
S
 

O
ld
e
r 
P
e
o
p
le
’s
 

A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

T
o
 a
g
re
e
 t
h
e
 n
e
x
t 
p
h
a
s
e
 o
f 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o
p
le
’s
 A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

w
it
h
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

D
e
n
is
e
 R
a
d
le
y
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 7
5
8
4
4
4
 

d
e
n
is
e
.r
a
d
le
y
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u

k
 

  

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

te
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 

 

E
x
te
n
s
io
n
 t
o
 W
o
o
d
s
to
n
 

P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l 

A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 t
o
 a
w
a
rd
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
a
n
 e
x
te
n
s
io
n
 t
o
 W

o
o
d
s
to
n
 

P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
 

  

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
S
k
il
ls
 a
n
d
 

U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
, 
C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

H
o
ld
ic
h
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 

w
it
h
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
, 

in
te
rn
a
l 
d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 w
a
rd
 

c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 a
s
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

Is
a
b
e
l 
C
la
rk
  

P
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
1
4
 

is
a
b
e
l.
c
la
rk
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

  

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

te
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 

 

E
x
te
n
s
io
n
 t
o
 H
a
m
p
to
n
 

H
a
rg
a
te
 S
c
h
o
o
l 

A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 t
o
 a
w
a
rd
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
a
n
 e
x
te
n
s
io
n
 t
o
 H

a
m
p
to
n
 

H
a
rg
a
te
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l 

 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
S
k
il
ls
 a
n
d
 

U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
, 
C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

H
o
ld
ic
h
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 

w
it
h
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
, 

in
te
rn
a
l 
d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 w
a
rd
 

c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 a
s
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

Is
a
b
e
l 
C
la
rk
  

P
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
1
4
 

is
a
b
e
l.
c
la
rk
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

te
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 

 

S
ta
ti
o
n
e
ry
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

A
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 a
w
a
rd
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
s
ta
ti
o
n
e
ry
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
s
u
p
p
lie
r 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 

th
e
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
e
x
e
rc
is
e
 

 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

S
e
a
to
n
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

w
it
h
 H

e
a
d
s
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 

o
th
e
r 
u
s
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

L
is
a
 O

s
b
o
rn
e
 

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
2
7
6
 

lis
a
.o
s
b
o
rn
e
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

te
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 

 

32



 

F
u
rn
it
u
re
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

A
u
th
o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 a
w
a
rd
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
fu
rn
it
u
re
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
s
u
p
p
lie
r 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 

th
e
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
e
x
e
rc
is
e
 

 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 

S
e
a
to
n
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

w
it
h
 H

e
a
d
s
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 

o
th
e
r 
u
s
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

L
is
a
 O

s
b
o
rn
e
 

C
a
te
g
o
ry
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
2
7
6
 

lis
a
.o
s
b
o
rn
e
@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

te
a
m
 o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 

b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 

 

33



 

 

 
O
C
T
O
B
E
R
 -
 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 

  
T
H
E
R
E
 A
R
E
 C
U
R
R
E
N
T
L
Y
 N
O
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 S
C
H
E
D
U
L
E
D
 F
O
R
 O
C
T
O
B
E
R
 

  

34



L
a
s
t 
u
p
d
a
te
d
: 
2
3
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
9
 

C
R
E
A
T
IN
G
 O
P
P
O
R
T
U
N
IT
IE
S
 A
N
D
 T
A
C
K
L
IN
G
 I
N
E
Q
U
A
L
IT
IE
S
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 

W
O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 D
a
te
 

 
It
e
m
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

1
6
 t
o
 1
8
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
 n
o
t 
in
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
T
ra
in
in
g
 o
r 
E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
(N
E
E
T
) 

 

 
2
1
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
9
 

   
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
A
d
u
lt
s
 a
n
d
 C
h
il
d
re
n
 w
it
h
 D
is
a
b
il
it
ie
s
 

 

 

1
5
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
 –
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
J
o
 P
ro
u
d
 

 

1
7
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
 –
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
J
o
 P
ro
u
d
 

 

1
9
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
0
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
 –
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
3
 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
3
. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
J
o
 P
ro
u
d
 

 

1
6
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
 –
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
J
o
 P
ro
u
d
 

 

 
 

 

 It
e
m
s
 t
o
 b
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
d
  

  
It
e
m
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

 
 

 

 

35



36

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3a Children and Lifelong Learning Scrutiny Panel held on 4 March 2009
	5 16 to 18 year olds not in Education, Training or Employment (NEET)
	6 Services for Adults and Children with Disabilities
	7 Forward Plan of Key Decisions
	Creating Opportunities - Report - Forward Plan Appendix 1

	8 Work Programme

